Approved	2-14-00

MINUTES OF THE HOUSE COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT.

The meeting was called to order by Chairman William G. Mason at 3:37 p.m. on March 2, 2000 in Room 522-S of the Capitol.

All members were present except: Representative Bonnie Sharp - E

Committee staff present: April Holman, Legislative Research Department

Lynne Holt, Legislative Research Department

Renae Jefferies, Revisor of Statutes Bob Nugent, Revisor of Statutes

Rose Marie Glatt, Committee Secretary

Conferees appearing before the committee:

Others attending: See Attached List

The Chairman opened the discussion on <u>HB 2971</u> and reminded the committee that the bill had been tabled. Representative Kuether moved that the bill be un-tabled. Representative Gatewood seconded and the motion <u>carried</u>.

Representative Aday introduced 15 members of the Ellsworth Leadership class.

Bob Nugent, Revisor of Statutes, referred to the revised bill that included the 10 amendments made to date. (1) He called attention to Representative Osborne's amendment made on February 22, page 7, lines 33, 34, and 35 which struck all the language after the word corporation, and noted that it was moved and passed however was not included it the revised bill. (2) The amendment moved by Representative Vickrey on February 22, which addressed the limitation of the bill to residential only. On page 9, under (c) In the performance of its duties and functions pursuant to this act, the corporation shall not: a new #3 amendment was added as follows: (3) participate in lending activities for non residential purposes (KBA). The current 3, 4, and 5 would be re-numbered. (3) On page 1 the language "accessible and integrated," was added to line 41, after the word of, (4) On page 2, sub-section (g) was stricken (5) page 2, new Sec. 2 the following language was added: and to assist Kansas families of low, very low and moderate income in obtaining such housing (6) page 2, lines 35, 40 and page 3, lines 1 and 5 the 70% figure was changed to 80% (7) page 3, lines 22, federal department of housing and urban development would replace department of housing (8) page 3, lines 27 through 31, would be struck (9) page 4, a new section (8) was added: "accessible and integrated" means that dwellings shall be designed, constructed or rehabilitated in such a way which allows for all residents to get into and use the dwelling, integrated in various locations throughout a proposed project, which is not for the exclusive occupancy of specific groups or categories of individuals." (10) page 8, line 26 new section (b) was added: (b) The corporation, to the greatest extent possible, shall hire and utilize private businesses in the performance of its powers and duties as prescribed by this act.

Mr. Nugent reviewed the recommendations submitted by the Kansas Bankers Association. They recommended striking sub-section (C) on page 3 regarding the need for housing in communities to attract new business. Discussion followed regarding the issue of need for and abuse of this section of the bill. Representative Campbell moved to strike sub-section (C), on page 3, lines 7 - 10. Representative Kuether seconded and the motion carried.

Mr. Nugent reviewed the amendment submitted by Representative Flora. It is New Section 1, that can be added to the end of the bill. The language follows: *The Kansas development finance authority shall enter into an agreement with the corporation through which all control, powers, duties and functions of the authority concerning its subsidiary corporation the Kansas equity fund, inc. are transferred to the corporation.* In addition, on page 8, line 23 a new (28) would be added: *create a housing equity fund for the purpose of purchasing low-income housing tax credits;*. Discussion followed clarifying the existing funds. Representative Aday moved that the amendments from Representative Flora, New Section 1 be added, as well as a new (28), Representative Findley seconded. Discussion followed regarding the importance of KDFA's opinion and the investors of the fund. The motion carried.

Mr. Nugent reviewed the amendments submitted by the Sedgwick County Housing Office. In summary he stated that the changes would take the corporation out of the business of generating mortgage revenue bonds. They recommended striking several areas regarding financing the construction of residential facilities for resident ownership and left only language that referred to rentals. Representative Aday stated that if the amendments are

adopted the corporation is out of the single family housing business and left solely with multi-family dwellings Discussion followed regarding the impact of the changes on rural communities.

Representative Aday distributed a list of concerns submitted by the Associated Realtors (<u>Attachment 1</u>). The Chairman asked Mr. Nugent to review the suggestions one by one.

Mr. Nugent explained that the *first* recommendation the Realtors made was to remove New Section 1, subparagraph (a), page 1. It is a legislative fact finding section, that was included in almost every state that had adopted a similar bill, thus it was included in the Kansas bill. Representative Campbell moved that on Page 1, New Section 1, subparagraph (a), be struck. Representative Gatewood seconded. Discussion followed regarding previous motions related to this section and the intent of the section. The motion carried.

The *second* recommendation was to change the language in New Section 2, Subparagraph (a) on page 2. It is a question of terminology, and Mr. Nugent suggested that their language clarified the intent of that section.

Representative Aday moved that the language in New Section 2, Subparagraph (a) be changed to read "The purpose of this act is to ensure, as businesses locate to Kansas and as existing businesses continue to expand, that there is a sufficient supply of housing within the state." Representative Kuether seconded and the motion carried.

The *third* suggestion was no longer necessary as the committee adopted the Bankers Association's amendment, which eliminated that language.

The *fourth* recommendation on page 6/7, New Section 4, Subparagraphs 16 & 17 concerns the state being involved in uninsured mortgages. He spoke about silent second mortgages and noted that the language was adopted from another state's program. Representative Gatewood suggested that they pass over this particular suggestion awaiting further clarification. Without any objections, Chairman Mason agreed to pass over that suggested amendment.

The *fifth* recommendation on page 9, New Section 4, Subparagraph (c), line 12 places restraints on the corporation, saying the language was too soft. The language was taken directly from the Governor's Task Force report. They recommended a "housing needs study" be produced by any entity seeking assistance from the housing corporation. Mr. Nugent noted that the language could be inserted after line 26 as a new subparagraph (5). Representative Vickrey moved that a housing study be produced by any entity seeking assistance from the housing corporation as a new subparagraph (5). Representative Aday seconded and the motion carried.

The *six* recommendation on page 9, subparagraph (3), line 21questioned the definition "for long periods of time". Mr. Nugent pointed out that the same section defines that term as within 18 months or as quickly thereafter as possible, which was adopted from the South Dakota bill. Discussion followed regarding time frame requirements.

In summary the Realtors support the bill, however they cautioned that the suggested program is too broad and perhaps Kansas should start with a core set of identifiable objectives and then after a positive evaluation, add additional programs as needs are identified.

Attention returned to the *fourth* recommendation discussing examples of uninsured loans. Chairman Mason asked Randy Speaker to elaborate on the issue. He explained industry standards of loans. Representative Campbell moved a conceptional motion that they get out of the uninsured mortgage business for the first mortgage. This should be done wherever noted throughout the bill. Representative Vickrey seconded. Discussion followed regarding silent second mortgages. The motion was carried.

Representative Campbell called the committee's attention to page 8, line 5, section (24) and questioned possible abuse due to the broad language, *persons and families in distressed communities of any income level etc.*Discussion followed regarding the intent of the bill and the likelihood of abuse.

Representative Vickrey questioned the issue of the state competing with the community banks; page 9, line 16 addresses that subject. Mr. Nugent explained that the language allows the corporation to make two different kinds of loans, one for distressed communities and the second for other geographical areas. In the first case the loan is made to build a residence for families of any income level while the second type provides for land development for residential housing.

Representative Campbell referred to page 9, lines 16 and 17 regarding the language. <u>He moved that they strike in the opinion of the corporation</u>, and substitute the following language: the requirement that applicants must produce two turn down letters from banks before applying for the program Representative Thimesch seconded. The motion carried.

Representative Kuether called attention to page 8, line 16. She moved a conceptual motion to cross apply the term very low after the word low, throughout the bill to provide consistency. Representative Osborne seconded and the motion carried.

Discussion followed regarding the corporation not being subject to state purchasing laws. Mr. Nugent clarified the rules and regulations.

Representative Osborne moved that Representative Flora's New Section 12, be added to page 13, with the repeals re-numbered afterward. Representative Beggs seconded and the motion carried.

The committee discussed private ownership listed on page 9, line 23. Representative Vickrey moved that the corporation be excluded from private ownership of land or property except in cases of re-possession, take-over of federal property, gifts and donations. There would be an eighteen month or less time frame on those exceptions. Representative Gerringer seconded the motion Discussion regarding scenarios that may take place requiring private ownership occurred. The motion was defeated.

Representative Kuether moved that they pass out favorably a substitute bill for **HB2971** as amended. Representative Aday seconded. The motion carried.

Representative Aday moved, seconded by Representative Kuether that the minutes from the February 15, 17, and 22 be approved. The motion carried.

The next meeting is Tuesday, March 7, 2000.

The Chairman adjourned the meeting at 4:55 p.m

.